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Nau Mai Haere Mai ki Te Uare Taoka o Hākena:  

Welcome to the Hocken Collections 

He mihi nui tēnei ki a koutou 

kā uri o kā hau e whā arā, kā mātāwaka o te motu, o te ao whānui hoki. 

Nau mai, haere mai ki te taumata. 

As you arrive 

We seek to preserve all the taoka we hold for future generations. So that all taoka are properly 

protected, we ask that you: 

 place your bags (including computer bags and sleeves) in the lockers provided 

 leave all food and drink including water bottles in the lockers (we have a researcher lounge off 

the foyer which everyone is welcome to use) 

 bring any materials you need for research and some ID in with you  

 sign the Readers’ Register each day 

 enquire at the reference desk first if you wish to take digital photographs 

Beginning your research 

This guide gives examples of the types of material relating to Australia held at the Hocken. All items 

must be used within the library. As the collection is large and constantly growing not every item is 

listed here, but you can search for other material on our Online Public Access Catalogues: 

 for books, theses, journals, magazines, newspapers, maps, and audiovisual material, use Library 

Search|Ketu. The advanced search - https://tinyurl.com/mtske2x9 gives you several search 

options, and you can refine your results to the Hocken Library on the left side of the screen.  

The Library Search Guide https://otago.libguides.com/ketuhelp contains helpful tips and 

assistance for using Library Search|Ketu; 

 for art, photographs, ephemera and archives use Hākena - https://hakena.otago.ac.nz. Listing of 

the ephemera collection has just begun on Hākena; please talk to desk staff if you have any 

questions about this collection. 

The Hākena Search Help Guide https://otago.libguides.com/hakena contains helpful tips and 

assistance for using Hākena; 

 



 
 

3 
 

 digitised images of many collection items are available via Hocken Digital Collections at 

https://hocken.recollect.co.nz/. There are also digitised images of Hocken and University of 

Otago Special Collections material that can be viewed via https://otago.ourheritage.ac.nz/. 

 

There is an online guide to the Hocken Collections for researchers at 

https://otago.libguides.com/hocken. It includes tips on referencing Hocken sources. 

 

If you have any enquiries about ordering or other research questions, please ask the reference desk 

staff – they will be happy to assist you. 
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New Zealand was administered by New South Wales from 1839 until it became a separate colony in 

November 1840. Dr Hocken intensively collected material relating to this early settlement period. The 

library continues to build on this collection and now holds a variety of resources relating to nineteenth 

and early twentieth century Australia and Australians.   

Publications 

Searching for “Australia” as a keyword on Library Search ǀ Ketu will bring lots of results so use 

advanced search to search more precisely and to create more complex searches. Try a subject search 

– some examples of subject headings are: 

 Australia--Biography 

 Australia--Description and travel 

 Australia--Economic conditions 

 Australia--History 

 Australian poetry 

 Australian literature 

You can add more specific terms to narrow your search. For example: 

 Aboriginal Australians--History--Sources 

 Aboriginal Australians--Social life and customs 

 Australia--Emigration and immigration--History--19th century 

 Australia--Relations--New Zealand 

 Gold mines and mining--Australia--History 

You can also search for specific regions. For example:

 New South Wales 

 Northern Territory 

 Queensland 

 South Australia 
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Some general histories of Australia include: 

Australians, a historical library (1987). Broadway, N.S.W.: Fairfax, Syme & Weldon. 11 
volumes. 

Jan Bassett (1993). The Oxford illustrated dictionary of Australian history. Melbourne: Oxford 
University Press. 

Graeme Davison, John Hirst, Stuart Macintyre, with the assistance of Helen Doyle, Kim 
Torney (Eds.) (2001). The Oxford companion to Australian history. Melbourne: Oxford 
University Press. (Available in ready reference area). 

Thomas Keneally (2009-<2011>).  Australians. Crows Nest, NSW: Allen & Unwin. 

Phillip Knightley (2000). Australia: a biography of a nation. London: Jonathan Cape. 

Frank Welsh (2004). Great southern land: a new history of Australia. London: Allen Lane. 

We have a range of publications covering diverse topics relating to Australia available for 

requesting via Library Search ǀ Ketu. A few examples are listed below: 

Aboriginal Australians 

Try a subject search on Library Search ǀ Ketu with the terms 

 Aboriginal Australians 

 Aboriginal Australians -- History 

 Australia -- Race relations 

Holdings include: 

Richard Broome (2010). Aboriginal Australians: a history since 1788. Fully rev. 4th ed. 
Crows Nest, N.S.W.: Allen & Unwin. 

Bill Gammage (2011). The biggest estate on earth: how Aborigines made Australia. Crows 
Nest, N.S.W.: Allen & Unwin. 

Russell McGregor (2011). Indifferent inclusion: Aboriginal people and the Australian nation. 
Canberra: Aboriginal Studies Press. 

Tim Murray (1998). Archaeology of Aboriginal Australia: a reader. St Leonards, N.S.W.: 
Allen & Unwin. 

Rachel Perkins, Marcia Langton, and Wayne Atkinson  (2010). First Australians: an 
illustrated history. Carlton, Vic.: Miegunyah Press. 



 
 

7 
 

Tony Swain (1993). A Place for strangers: towards a history of Australian Aboriginal being. 
Cambridge, England; Melbourne: Cambridge University Press. 

Norman B. Tindale (1974). Aboriginal tribes of Australia: their terrain, environmental controls, 
distribution, limits, and proper names. Berkeley: University of California Press. 

Art, Literature and Culture 

Try a subject search on Library Search ǀ Ketu with the terms 

 Music -- Australia 

 Art -- Australia 

 Art, Australian 

 Australian literature 

 Fashion – Australia 

 Photography – Australia 

Holdings include: 

Warren Arthur Bebbington (1998). A Dictionary of Australian music. Melbourne: Oxford 
University Press. 

Bruce Bennett, Jennifer Strauss, Chris Wallace-Crabbe (1998). The Oxford literary history of 
Australia. Melbourne: Oxford University Press. 

Peter A. Dowling (2012). Index to imagery in colonial Australian illustrated newspapers. 
Hamilton, Vic.: Peter A. Dowling. 

Erika Esau (c2010). Images of the Pacific Rim: Australia and California, 1850-1935. [Sydney]: 
Power Publications, Power Institute Foundation for Art and Visual Culture, University 
of Sydney. 

Brian R. Howes (1986). Guide to fine and rare Australasian books. Wagga Wagga, N.S.W.: 
B.R. Howes. 

Mitchell Oakley Smith (2010). Fashion: Australian & New Zealand designers. Fishermans 
Bend, Vic.: Thames & Hudson. 

Helga Ramsey-Kurtz and Ulla Ratheiser (Eds.) (2010). Antipodean childhoods: growing up 
in Australia and New Zealand. Newcastle upon Tyne, UK: Cambridge Scholars Press. 

Sue Ryan-Fazilleau; Centre for New Zealand Studies (2008). New Zealand & Australia: 
narrative, history, representation. London: Kakapo Books. 

William H. Wilde, Joy Hooton, and Barry Andrews (1994). The Oxford companion to 
Australian literature. Melbourne: Oxford University Press. 
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Biography 

One of the best sources for information on Australians is  

 Douglas Pike ([1966]-2002). Australian dictionary of biography. Melbourne: Melbourne 
University Press; London, New York: Cambridge University Press. Also available online 
at https://adb.anu.edu.au/. 

Try searching Library Search ǀ Ketu for the name of the person you are interested in or try a 

subject search with the terms 

 Australia – Biography 

 Governors general -- Australia -- Biography 

 Politicians -- Australia – Biography 

 Explorers -- Australia – Biography 

 Pioneers -- Australia -- Biography 

Discovery and Exploration  

Try a subject search on Library Search ǀ Ketu with the terms 

 Australia -- Discovery and exploration 

 Australia -- Description and travel 

 Australasia -- Discovery and exploration 

 Oceania -- Discovery and exploration  

Holdings include: 

Jim Bain (2011). Uncertain beginnings: the remarkable story of how Australia was colonised by 
the British rather than the Portuguese, the Spanish, the Dutch or the French. Glen Waverley, 
Vic.: Sid Hartha. 

James Cook; National Library of Australia (2008). Cook's Endeavour journal: the inside 
story. Canberra: National Library of Australia. 

Miriam Estensen (1998). Discovery: the quest for the great south land. St Leonards, N.S.W.: 
Allen & Unwin. 

Ernest Favenc (1983). The history of Australian exploration from 1788 to 1888. Facsim. 
reprint. Gladesville, N.S.W.: Golden Press. 

History and Colonisation 

Try a subject search on Library Search ǀ Ketu with the terms 

 Australia – Colonization 
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 Australia -- Discovery and exploration 

 Australia  -- History -- 1788-1851 

 Australia -- History -- To 1788 

Holdings include: 

Francis Masson Bladen (1892-1901). Historical records of New South Wales.  Sydney: Govt. 
Print. 

W.D. Borrie (1994). The European Peopling of Australasia: a demographic history, 1788-1988.  
Canberra: Demography Program, Research School of Social Sciences, Australian 
National University. 

Alan Frost (2011). Botany Bay: the real story. Collingwood, Vic.: Black Inc.  

David T. Hawkings (2012). Bound for Australia: a guide to the records of transported convicts 
and early settlers. Stroud, U.K.: History Press. 

Alan Mayne and Stephen Atkinson (Eds.) (2011). Outside country: histories of inland 
Australia. Kent Town, S.Aust.: Wakefield Press. 

Roger C. Thompson (1980). Australian imperialism in the Pacific: the expansionist era, 1820-
1920. Carlton, Vic.: Melbourne University Press. 

 

Gold mining 

Try a subject search on Library Search ǀ Ketu with the terms 

 Gold mines and mining – Australia 

 Australia -- Gold discoveries 

Holdings include: 

Kerry Cardell, Cliff Cumming, Australian National University. Humanities Research 
Centre. (2001). A world turned upside down: cultural change on Australia's goldfields 1851-
2001. Canberra: Humanities Research Centre, Australian National University. 

Nancy Keesing (1971). History of the Australian gold rushes, by those who were there. 
Hawthorn, Vic.: Lloyd O’Neil. 

George Mackaness (Ed.) (1976). Australian gold fields, their discovery, progress and prospects.  
Dubbo, N.S.W.: Review Publications. 

Military 

Try a subject search on Library Search ǀ Ketu with the terms 

 Australia -- Armed Forces -- History 



 
 

10 
 

 Australia -- History, Military 

 Soldiers -- Australia -- History -- 20th century 

 
Holdings include: 

George Frederick Davis (2009). Anzac Day meanings and memories: New Zealand, Australian 
and Turkish perspectives on a day of commemoration in the twentieth century.  Thesis (Ph. D.) 
Dunedin, New Zealand: University of Otago. Available online at https://bit.ly/2VVDtGQ.  

R.H. Montague (c.1989). How to trace your military ancestors in Australia and New Zealand. 
Sydney: Hale & Iremonger. 

Peter Pedersen with Chris Roberts (2011). ANZACS on the Western Front: the Australian 
War Memorial battlefield guide. Richmond, Vic.: John Wiley & Sons Australia. 

Craig Stockings (Ed.) (2012). Anzac's dirty dozen: twelve myths of Australian military history. 
Kensington, N.S.W.: NewSouth Publishing. 

Torres Strait Islands 

Try a subject search on Library Search ǀ Ketu with the terms 

 Torres Strait Islands (Qld.) 

 Torres Strait Islanders 

Holdings include: 

Jeremy Beckett (1987). Torres Strait Islanders: custom and colonialism. Cambridge, 
Cambridgeshire; Sydney: Cambridge University Press. 

John Singe (1989). The Torres Strait: people and history. 2nd ed. St. Lucia, Qld.: University of 
Queensland Press. 

Trans-Tasman Relations 

Try a subject search on Library Search ǀ Ketu with the terms 

 Australia -- Foreign relations -- New Zealand 

 Australia   Foreign economic relations   New Zealand 

 Australia   Military relations   New Zealand 

 Australia -- Commerce -- New Zealand

Holdings include: 

Arthur Grimes, Lydia Wevers, and Ginny Sullivan (Eds.) (2002). States of mind: Australia 
and New Zealand 1901-2001. Wellington, N.Z.: Institute of Policy Studies. 
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Denis McLean (2003). The prickly pair: making nationalism in Australia and New Zealand. 
Dunedin, N.Z.: University of Otago Press. 

New Zealand. Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade. (c2005). The Australia - New Zealand 
closer economic relationship. Wellington, N.Z.: Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade. 

Newspapers 

Search Library Search ǀ Ketu for holdings. Try a subject search with the following terms: 

 Australia -- Periodicals 

 Australian newspapers  

 Sydney (N.S.W.) – Newspapers 

 Victoria -- Periodicals 

 
We have issues of some 19th century Australian newspapers in print and on microfilm – check 

Library Search ǀ Ketu for holdings. Titles include: 

 Australian (Sydney) 1824-1848 

 Age (Melbourne) 1860-1866 

 The Argus (Melbourne) 1846-1870 

 Sydney Morning Herald 1834-1880; Jan.-Jun. 1882; 1883; 1902-1903 

 Sydney Gazette 1808-1838 

 The Sydney Monitor 1836-1838 

 Colonial Times (Hobart) 1825-1857 

 Hobart Town Courier 1827-1859 

 Independent (Launceston) 1831-1835 

 Launceston Advertiser 1829-1846 

 Tasmanian and Southern Literary & Political Journal 1832- June 1841 

 
The published collections include several indexes to birth, death, marriage notices, and 

passenger arrivals and departures, published in Australian newspapers. Search Library 

Search ǀ Ketu under the subjects 

 Tasmania – Genealogy – Indexes 

 Sydney   morning   herald -- Indexes 

or try a simple search with the name of the newspaper and the keyword ‘index’. 
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Some historic newspapers are available online: 

 Trove – an online resource that enables full-text searching of Australian newspapers 

mostly from the 1800s to the mid-1950s https://trove.nla.gov.au/ but coverage for some 

resources is more recent. 

 Google News Archive - as part of Google News, the archive search provides an easy 

way explore historical newspapers https://news.google.com/newspapers?hl=en. Digital 

image scans of historical newspaper archives of 2000+ titles from around the world, 

especially US, UK, Canada, and Australia. Dates of inclusion vary by title from full to 

limited. 

 ProQuest historical newspapers - Search and access several newspaper collections 

including ProQuest Newsstand, and Australia & New Zealand Newsstand 

https://tinyurl.com/3v9pj3zd  

 
See the University of Otago Library subject guide on History for more tips on locating 

Australian newspaper sources https://otago.libguides.com/history. 

Journals 

The Hocken holds a variety of journals that were published in Australia or have some 

Australian content. 

Search Library Search ǀ Ketu for holdings. Try a subject search with the following terms: 

 Australia periodicals 

 New South Wales – Periodicals 

 Melbourne (Vic.) -- Periodicals 

Some of the journals held include: 

 Aboriginal History 

 APRA: magazine of the Australasian Performing Right Association 

 Art in Australia 

 Asia Pacific Journal of Anthropology 

 Australian & New Zealand Gazette 

 Australian and New Zealand Journal of Art 

 Australian and New Zealand Journal of Criminology 

 Australian and New Zealand Journal of Psychiatry 
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 Australian and New Zealand Journal of Sociology 

 Australian Economic History Review 

 Australian Folklore 

 Australian Historical Studies 

 Australian Poetry 

 Canberra Anthropology 

 Colloquium: the Australian and New Zealand Theological Review 

 Conversations: occasional writing from the Research School of Pacific and Asian Studies 

 Herpetofauna 

 Historical Records of Australian Science 

 Journal of the Royal Australian Historical Society 

 Meanjin Quarterly 

 Oceania 

 Pacifica: Australian Theological Studies 

 Pacific Economic Bulletin 

 Pacific Research 

 Pambu: the monthly newsletter of the Pacific Manuscripts Bureau, Research School of Pacific 

Studies, Australian National University (available online at 

https://pambu.anu.edu.au/newsletters) 

 Review of Reviews 

 Southerly: the magazine of the Australian English Association 

 Span: Journal of the South Pacific Association for Commonwealth Literature and Language 

Studies 

 Terra Australis 

 The Victorian Review 

 Walkabout 

 

Microfilm 

Catalogues for the Australian Joint Copying Project (AJCP) are available in the reference area 

or browse their finding aids online at https://tinyurl.com/2zb9zp2b. We have some – not all – 

of these microfilms. The films we hold are individually catalogued on Library Search ǀ Ketu. 

Try the microfilm finding aids in the reference area; ask staff for assistance. 
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Audiovisual resources 

We hold DVD/video recordings relating to Australia or Australians. These are mainly war 

documentary films, but there are also some sporting, musical and exploratory features. Search 

Library Search ǀ Ketu for holdings of titles or look under the subject that interests you and 

then refine results to “Audio visual”. A few examples include: 

 Gallipoli brothers in arms. Australia: Zapruder’s other films & Australian Broadcasting 

Corporation, c2007. 

 Anzac a nation's heritage. Sydney, N.S.W.: Film Australia, 1981. 

 Colour of war the ANZACs. Australia: Roadshow Entertainment, c2004. 

 Full circle travels around the Pacific rim. Great Britain: BBC Worldwide Ltd., c1997. 

 Two great adventurers. Northcote, Vic.: Umbrella Entertainment distributor, c2009. 

 Children of the sun. Auckland, N.Z.: McAlpine Film Productions, 2000. 

 Highlights of the 1997 Tri Nations. Australia: Rugby International PTY Ltd., c1997 

 
Please note: items that are video VHS or cassette tape recordings are housed in cool storage 

and need to be requested at least 24 hours in advance to acclimatise before they can be viewed. 

Maps 

The maps collection includes a variety of maps of Australia. They include maps for specific 

regions as well as those that relate to a particular subject e.g. mining. Search Library Search ǀ 

Ketu for holdings of titles. Try a subject search with the terms ‘Australia -- Maps’ and then 

refine results to ‘Hocken Library’. You can also refine by date and subject. Some examples of 

subject headings include: 

 Victoria -- Maps 

 Gold mines and mining -- Western Australia -- Maps 

 Sydney (N.S.W.) -- Maps 

 Nautical charts -- Australia 

For further information, see our Maps and plans at the Hocken Collections reference guide at 

https://www.otago.ac.nz/library/hocken/guides-to-the-hocken-collections. You can view 

digitised maps of Australia via Trove https://trove.nla.gov.au. 
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Archives  

A variety of material relating to Australia and Australians is held in our archives collection, 

including: 

 Letters, diaries, and journals 

 Records of shipping, voyaging, emigration, and early settlement 

 Company records, sports files, medical papers 

 Church records, missionary records, religious pamphlets, and newsletters 

 Military records 

 Miscellaneous Australian-related correspondence 

 Notes on Aboriginal language 

 
Search for this material on Hākena, the art, photographs, ephemera and archives catalogue. 

Try a place search with the term ‘Australia’ or try a subject search with the terms: 

 
 Australian aborigines 

 Australia – Description and travel 

 Australia – History 

 Missionaries – Australia 

 
The archives collection includes the following records: 

Beatrice Esplin: Rev. William Mugford Grant papers [MS-0951]. The collection includes 
diaries, journals, correspondence, notebooks, financial records, and photographs. Most 
of the material relates to Rev. Grant's involvement in the Congregational Church both in 
South Australia and Port Chalmers, Dunedin. 

Mrs R.E. Horn: Family papers [Misc-MS-0906]. John Aspinall Junior was killed on 13 
March 1896 in a remote part of Western Australia. This collection consists of a 
photographic copy of a Miner's Right certificate issued to John Aspinall on 18 May 1861. 
It also includes a diary written by his son John covering his travels from Skippers Point 
to Western Australia, 19 February 1895 to 13 March 1896. 

 
Henry Beresford Garrett: An account of prison life in Australia [Misc-MS-0475]. Henry 
Beresford Garrett was a notorious criminal in Australia and Otago. He used the 
pseudonym 'Klodopr' in his writings. 

Hilda Adam Kring: Collections of New Zealand and Australian superstitions [Misc-MS-
1959].  In 1966, while visiting New Zealand, American folklorist Hilda A. Kring collected 
local superstitions from Pakeha New Zealanders. Most of the contributors were 
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Canterbury teachers and teachers' college students. She carried out a similar project in 
Australia the same year. The collection includes two typescripts, 'In the Land of Witches' 
Britches' (New Zealand) and 'Superstitions Under the Southern Cross' (Australia). Each 
includes an introduction, a list of superstitions arranged by category, and a list of 
informants. 

 
[Unknown]: Theatre Clippings Books [AG-231]. The books include clippings relating to 
theatres and cinemas in Dunedin, Oamaru, Timaru, Ashburton, and Australia. They 
contain clippings for the Princess Theatre, Dunedin, and Brennan-Fullers Ltd. (1917-
1931), as well as a collection of vaudeville programmes. 

 
See the University of Otago Library subject guide on History for more tips on locating 

Australian primary sources https://otago.libguides.com/history. 

Family History 

The Hocken Collections hold several published family histories, and many include families 

who migrated to Australia, or spent some time there before migrating to New Zealand. Search 

Library Search ǀ Ketu under the subjects 

 Australia -- Genealogy 

 Tasmania – Genealogy 

 New South Wales – Genealogy 

or, try an advanced search with ‘New Zealand – Genealogy’ as the subject, ‘Australia’ as a 

keyword, and then refine results to ‘Hocken Library’. 

The published collections include the following family history books: 

Joanna Beaumont (1985). How to write and publish your family history: a complete guide for 
Australia and New Zealand. Sydney, N.S.W.: Orlando Press. 

David T. Hawkings (2012). Bound for Australia: a guide to the records of transported convicts 
and early settlers. Stroud, U.K.: History Press. 

R. H. Montague (c1989). How to trace your military ancestors in Australia and New Zealand. 
Sydney: Hale & Iremonger.  

Cora Num (2000). How to find shipping and immigration records in Australia. 4th ed., 
reprinted with amendments and additions. Cumberland Park, S.Aust.: Cora Num. 

Janet Reakes (1997). Our family history: how to trace your family tree. Rev. ed. Pymble, 
N.S.W.: HarperCollins. 
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Several useful resources relating to Australia are held on microfiche in the ready reference 

area (some of these are now accessible via the Ancestry database that is available on any of 

the public computers in the library. University of Otago/Otago Polytechnic staff and students 

can also access this database offsite with their account details). They include: 

 Victorian Pioneer Index 1837-1888 

 Victorian electoral rolls for 1856-1857 and 1899 

 Births, Deaths and Marriages for Victoria 1889-1913 

 Baillieres Victorian Gazetteers 1865, 1870, 1879  

 Wises Victoria PO Directory 1884-1898 (with gaps) 

 Victoria PO Directory 1899-1900 

 Baillieres Victorian Directories 1868, 1869, 1870, 1871-2, 1875, 1880-1881 

 Sands & McDougall Melbourne Directory 1862-1883 

 Port Phillip/Victoria Directory 1839-1867 

 Sands & Kenny Melbourne Directories 1857-1861 

 Macphail’s National Directory of Tasmania 1867-1868 

 The Ashley Mining Index. Mining Companies Applying for Registration in Victoria 

1860-1864 

We also hold a few Australian shipping records (mainly for Victoria) on microfiche: 

 Index of passengers and crew in and out of Sydney 1830-1841 (from Sydney newspapers) 

 Argus Passenger Index 1846-1851, 1856-1868 

 Argus Shipping Movements 1846-1851, 1856-1868 

 Immigration to Victoria Inward from British Ports 1852-1879 

 Immigration to Victoria Inward from Foreign Ports 1852-1879 

 Immigration to Victoria Inward from New Zealand Ports 1852-1923 

 Immigration to Victoria German Immigrants 1849-1850 

 Immigration to Victoria Register of Inward Shipping 1846-1852 

Some of these sources can be searched online via https://bit.ly/2DaIa8m. 

 

For help with family history research, see also the genealogy and whakapapa guides at 

https://www.otago.ac.nz/library/hocken/guides-to-the-hocken-collections. 
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Staff at the National Library of Australia have created a short video tutorial on how to begin 

your family history research: https://www.nla.gov.au/research-guides/family-

history/getting-started. 

The New Zealand Society of Genealogists has an Australian Interest Group 

https://genealogy.org.nz/Branch-details/11084-s1100091/.  

Use the Ancestry database to locate information for Australia. This database provides access 

to a variety of records including census records, directories, birth, death and marriage records, 

and immigration records. 

FamilySearch https://www.familysearch.org/en/ provides access to several Australian 

historical records, including births, deaths, marriages, newspaper indexes, cemetery 

inscriptions and migrant records.  

Art and Photography Collections 

Search Hākena for holdings of images of Australia and Australians. Try a keyword, subject or 

place search and then refine results to the “pictures” or “photographs” collection. Please talk 

to desk staff if you wish to access the art and photography collections.  

The reader access file in the photographs reference area includes images relating to Australia. 

These photographs can also be viewed via Hocken Digital Collections 

https://hocken.recollect.co.nz/. 

A few works can be viewed online at https://otago.ourheritage.ac.nz/.   

The art collection includes prints featuring Australian landscapes and Aboriginal Australians 

as part of the Godward Collection (92/30 – 1141). There are studies of Australia in sketchbooks 

by William Barraud, J.A. Gilfillan, J.H. Scott, J.T. Thompson and Fanny Brunton, and a couple 

of water colour sketches of Sydney by J.C. Hoyte (A303 and A304). The works of G.P. Nerli 

also feature a few Australian scenes and subjects (15,613, 17,152 and 17,153). 

The photographs collection includes the following items: 

Henry Albert Frith: Last of the Tasmanians (c.1864) [Box-212-001] Hand-coloured studio 
portrait of three women and one man, widely known as the last full-blooded 
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representatives of the indigenous people of Tasmania. A second non-colorised copy is held 
at P1910-007-005. 

Burton Brothers; Clifford & Morris: Pacific Islands: Photographs of Fiji and Australia 
(1884-1892) [P1998-070] 

Dunedin Public Library: Photographs – Albums 324, 325 and 328 [P1990-015/05, P1990-
015/06 and P1990-015/11] include various notable F.A. Coxhead photographs taken in 
Tasmania, Melbourne, and Sydney. Album 352 [P1990-015/29] includes portraits, ship 
portraits, pictures of churches and views around Hobart, Tasmania. 

 

Websites  

National Archives of Australia holds records of Commonwealth government agencies and 

significant individuals within the government. They also provides access to information about 

archives around Australia, including Commonwealth, State, Territory and others - 

https://www.naa.gov.au/  

National Library of Australia provides access to Australian digitised newspapers (from 

1803), as well as photographs, archives and more - https://www.nla.gov.au/  

The Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Biographical Index (ABI) is a personal name 

index to published material held in the AIATSIS Library - 

https://aiatsis.gov.au/research/guides-and-resources/people-and-languages   

The Australian Indigenous Index is an index to the Koori Mail, a national fortnightly 

newspaper published in Lismore, NSW, for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples 

from May 1991 onwards. It also indexes biographical information on Aboriginal and Torres 

Strait Islander peoples from the magazines: Our Aim (1907-1961), Dawn (1952-1969), New 

Dawn (1970-1975) and Identity (1971-1982) - https://bit.ly/33VlUuM   

Australian literary and historical texts is part of the SETIS project (Scholarly Electronic Text 

and Image Service at the University of Sydney Library), this collection comprises editions of 

hundreds of Australian literary and historical texts - 

https://digital.library.sydney.edu.au/pages/setis  
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Library & Archives NT includes a digital repository Territory Stories for digital resources 

including photographs, archival items, newspapers, books, periodicals and collection and 

research guides about the Northern Territory https://lant.nt.gov.au/  

State Library of New South Wales https://www.sl.nsw.gov.au/  

State Library of Queensland https://www.slq.qld.gov.au/  

State Library of South Australia https://www.slsa.sa.gov.au/home   

State Library of Western Australia https://www.slwa.wa.gov.au/  

State Library of Victoria https://www.slv.vic.gov.au/  

Libraries Tasmania is comprised of the State Library of Tasmania, the Tasmanian Archives, 

45 public libraries, the Allport Library and Museum of Fine Arts and the Office of the State 

Archivist - https://libraries.tas.gov.au/Pages/Home.aspx   

Public Record Office Victoria https://prov.vic.gov.au/   

Queensland State Archives https://www.qld.gov.au/recreation/arts/heritage/archives  

State Records Office of Western Australia https://www.wa.gov.au/organisation/state-

records-office-of-western-australia   

NSW State Archives Collection https://www.records.nsw.gov.au/  

State Records of South Australia https://www.archives.sa.gov.au/   

Australian War Memorial https://www.awm.gov.au/    

Te Ara The Encyclopedia of New Zealand Story: Australia and New Zealand 

https://teara.govt.nz/en/australia-and-new-zealand  

Biodiversity Heritage Library includes a section on Australia that contains the titles 

contributed by museum and herbarium libraries in Australia, as well as by Australia's royal 

societies, field naturalist clubs and government institutes and agencies 

https://www.biodiversitylibrary.org/browse/collections  
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The real face of White Australia. Living under the White Australia Policy. This project 

uses biographical information found in government records to link together the lives of non-

Europeans, including Chinese, Japanese, Indians, Afghans, Syrians and Malays, revealing 

the real face of White Australia. https://www.realfaceofwhiteaustralia.net/  

To be continued… This project has uncovered over 40,000 works of fiction in digitised 19th- 

and early-20th-century Australian newspapers, greatly expanding the record of early 

Australian literature and literature in Australia. 

https://cdhrdatasys.anu.edu.au/tobecontinued/  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            Jacinta Beckwith and Katherine Milburn, March 2024 
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North Queensland. Australia’s Winter Paradise. Ephemera Collection.  

 

Hocken Collections/Te Uare Taoka o Hākena 
90 Anzac Ave, PO Box 56, Dunedin 9054 
Phone 03 479 8868 
reference.hocken@otago.ac.nz  
https://www.otago.ac.nz/library/hocken/     

 For hours, please check our website: 
https://www.otago.ac.nz/library/hocken/   

 


